
Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District 
Governing Board of Directors 

Agenda 
Regular Meeting 

Monday  
September 25, 2023 

1:00 PM 

Paul Roen, Chair 
Sierra County Supervisor, District Three 

Lee Adams, Vice-Chair 
Sierra County Supervisor, District One 

Hardy Bullock 
Nevada County Supervisor, District Five 

Ed Scofield  
Nevada County Supervisor, District Two 

Tom McGowan 
Plumas County Supervisor, District Three 

Dwight Ceresola 
Plumas County Supervisor, District One 

Alternates:  
Susan Hoek, Nevada County Supervisor, District Four 

Lila Heuer, Sierra County Supervisor, District Two 
Jeff Engel, Plumas County Supervisor, District Five 

Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District 
Julie Hunter, Interim Air Pollution Control Officer 

Grass Valley Office  
200 Litton Drive, Ste 320 
Grass Valley, CA 95945 
(530) 274-9360

Portola Office 
257 E. Sierra, Unit E. 
Portola, CA 96122 
(530) 832-0102

1



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

September 25, 2023 
1:00 P.M.  

This meeting will be held by videoconference/telephone at the following 
locations: 

(Site A ) VIDEOCONFERENCE/TELEPHONE CONFERENCE 
Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District (Headquarters) 

200 Litton Drive, Conference Room 316 
Grass Valley, California  

(Site B) VIDEOCONFERENCE/TELEPHONE CONFERENCE 
Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District (Northern Office) 

257 E. Sierra Street, Unit E 
Portola, California   

(Site C) VIDEOCONFERENCE/TELEPHONE CONFERENCE 
Nevada County Supervisors Office 

10183 Truckee Airport Road, Truckee, CA 96161 

(Site D) VIDEOCONFERENCE/TELEPHONE CONFERENCE 
Great Hall, Union Station, 
255 S Clinton Chicago, Il 

All items on the agenda may be acted upon by the Board of Directors.  No action will 
be taken nor discussion held at the meeting on business not appearing on the posted 
agenda. 

I. Standing Orders:
A.Call to Order
B Roll call and determination of quorum.
C. Public Comment:  For items NOT appearing on the agenda and within the
jurisdiction of the Board.  The public may comment on Agenda items as they are
discussed.

II. Approval and/or Modifications to Agenda

III. Consent Calendar These Items Are Expected to Be Routine and Noncontroversial.
They Will Be Acted on By the Board at One Time Without Discussion.  Any Board
Member, Staff Member, or Interested Party May Request That an Item Be Removed
From the Consent Calendar for Discussion.

A.Approval of regular meeting minutes – June 26, 2023
B.Payment Details by Vendor Board Report – June and July 2023

2



C.Re-Appoint Variance Hearing Board Member Greg Margason (Engineer)
September 25, 2023 to September 25, 2028

IV. Closed Session
Pursuant to Government Code section 54957(b)(1), a closed session will be held to
discuss the appointment of an Executive Director

V. Administrative Report (Action/Discussion Items)
A.Ratify Contract # G22-EIDG-20 between CARB and Air District for Receiving

$8,583 in AB 197 Emission Inventory Grant funds.
B. Approval of Resolution #2023-09 for the District to accept funds from the

California Resources Board for the AB197 Grant – Round 6
C. Ratify CPS HR Consulting Services Agreement for the NSAQMD Executive

Director – Outreach contract.
D.Approval of Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Unaudited Actuals and Budget Revision
E.Approval of hiring the approved Air Pollution Specialist I, at a Step C.

VI. Director’s Report (Informational Only)
A.Information Technology update
B.Online payment update
C.Conference room update

VII. Staff Reports/Program Updates (Informational Only)
A.Monitoring Network Update
B.Planning Program Update
C.Permitting Program Update
D.Compliance/Enforcement Program Update
E.Targeted Airshed Grant Update
F.Grants Update

VIII. Concerns of Board - The Board may at this time bring up matters it wishes to
discuss at the next Board Meeting, as long as no discussions are conducted and no
actions are taken, in compliance with the Brown Act.

X. Schedule next Meeting – Video/Phone Conference October 23, 2023 @ 1:00 PM

XI. Adjournment

3



PERSONS DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be conducted by the Chairperson in a manner consistent 
with the policies of the District.  The latest edition of Robert's Rules of Order, Revised shall also be 
used as a general guideline for meeting protocol.  District policies shall prevail whenever they are in 
conflict with Robert's Rules of Order, Revised. 
All Board meetings shall commence at the time stated on the agenda and shall be guided by same. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Provisions for permitting any individual or group to address the Board concerning any item on 
the agenda of a special meeting, or to address the Board at a regular meeting on any subject 
that lies within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors, shall be as follows: 

Three (3) minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of fifteen (15) minutes to 
each subject matter. 

No boisterous conduct shall be permitted at any Board meeting.  Persistence in boisterous 
conduct shall be grounds for summary termination, by the Chairperson, of that person's 
privilege of address. 

No oral presentation shall include charges or complaints against any District employee, 
regardless of whether or not the employee is identified in the presentation by name or by 
another reference which tends to identify.  All charges or complaints against employees shall 
be submitted to the Board of Directors under provisions contained in District Policy 1030. 

Willful disruption of any of the meetings of the Board of Directors shall not be permitted.  If 
the Chairperson finds that there is in fact willful disruption of any meeting of the Board, 
he/she may order the room cleared and subsequently conduct the Board's business without 
the audience present.  In such an event, only matters appearing on the agenda may be 
considered in such a session. 

After clearing the room, the Chairperson may permit those persons who, in his/her opinion, 
were not responsible for the willful disruption to re-enter the meeting room. 

Duly accredited representatives of the news media, whom the Chairperson finds not to have 
participated in the disruption, shall be admitted to the remainder of the meeting. 

Members of the public are given the opportunity to address the Board of Directors directly at 
each teleconference location. 

POSTING AGENDA: 
This agenda was posted at least 72 hours prior to the regular meeting at the following locations: Eric 
Rood Government Center in Nevada City, The Plumas County Courthouse in Quincy, the Litton 
Building in Grass Valley, Northern Air District office in Portola, the Plumas County Board of 
Supervisors Chambers in Quincy, Sierra County Courthouse Square in Downieville. The agenda 
and board packet are available on-line prior to the Board Meeting at www.myairdistrict.com  

4



To:Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors 

From: Julie Hunter, Interim Air Pollution Control Officer 

Date: September 25, 2023 

Agenda Item: II 

Agenda Description: Approval and/or Modifications to Agenda 

Requested Action:  Discuss modifications to agenda, approve agenda with a roll call vote. 

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUESTED 

5



To:Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors 

From: Julie Hunter, Interim Air Pollution Control Officer 

Date: September 25, 2023 

Agenda Item: III.A 

Agenda Description: Approval of regular meeting minutes – June 26, 2023 

Requested Action: Approve Draft Minutes 

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUESTED 

Attachments:  
1. Draft June 26, 2023 minutes

6



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT   Julie Hunter, Interim APCO 
DISTRICT HEADQUARTERS NORTHERN FIELD OFFICE 
200 Litton Drive, Suite 320 257 E. Sierra, Unit E 
Mailing Address:  Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2227 
Grass Valley, CA  95945 Portola, CA 96122    
(530) 274-9360 / FAX: (530) 274-7546 (530) 832-0102 / FAX: (530) 832-0101
email: office@myairdistrict.com or www.myairdistrict.com

MINUTES 

NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  

June 26, 2023 
1:00 p.m. 

This meeting will be held in person at the following location: 
Nevada County Supervisors Office 

10183 Truckee Airport Road Truckee, CA 96161 

Members Present: 
Supervisor Roen, Chair  
Supervisor Adams, Vice-Chair 
Supervisor Scofield 
Supervisor Ceresola 
Supervisor McGowan  
Supervisor Bullock 

I. Standing Orders:
Call to Order. Roll Call and Determination of Quorum.

Chair Roen called the meeting to order at 1:03 P.M. A quorum was confirmed. Also,
present; Julie Hunter, Interim APCO; Dawn Lunsford, Clerk of the Board, Kit Elliott
Nevada County Counsel.

A. Public Comment:  For Items NOT Appearing on the Agenda and Within the
Jurisdiction of the Board. The Public May Comment on Agenda Items As They Are
Discussed. Both Teleconference Sites are Allowed an Opportunity for Public
Comment.

Chair Roen called for public comment for items not appearing on the agenda. There 
was no public comment.  

II. Approval and/or modification to the agenda
Chair Roen reminded the Board that the July Board Meeting is typically skipped, the next
board meeting is August 28, 2023.  Chair Roan advised we may have to have a special
meeting in July 2023 due to pending items that need to go to the Board sooner than

7



August Supervisor Bullock made a motion to approve the consent calendar. Supervisor 
Ceresola seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously by those in 
attendance, following a roll call vote. 

III. Consent Calendar
Supervisor McGowan entered the meeting at 1:07 pm. Supervisor Adams made a motion
to approve the consent calendar. Supervisor Bullock seconded the motion. The motion
was approved unanimously following a roll call vote.

IV. Administrative Report

IV.A- Final Approval for FY 2023-2024 Operating and Restricted Budget.

Julie Hunter reported that last month the Board was presented with the preliminary Budget 
and there were no public comments, and no changes were made. The Final Budget is 
attached and needs to be approved by the board and authorize Chair Roen to sign 
resolution #2023-06. Supervisor Scofield made a motion to approve the Final Budget. 
Supervisor Bullock seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously by those 
in attendance, following a roll call vote. 

V. B- Approval of the amended Grant Agreement between the District and California Air
Resources Board for the FY 21/22 Wood Smoke Reduction Program.

Julie Hunter reported Northern Sierra has been approved to receive $245,000 with
$23,452 for implementation and administration funds. This Wood Smoke Reduction
Program cannot be used for the non-attainment area in Portola. All other areas in the three
counties can receive the Wood Smoke Reduction Program. There is criteria to be eligible
for the program and there are people on the waiting list. This program will be administered
in the Grass Valley office. Ms. Hunter asked for approval of Resolution #2023-08 for
accepting the Wood Smoke Reduction Program FY 2021-2022. Supervisor Scofield made
a motion to approve the Final Budget. Supervisor Bullock seconded the motion. The
motion was approved unanimously by those in attendance, following a roll call vote.

Chair Roen also added this program only applies to wood stoves, not heat pumps. Julie
added it also applies propane and pellet.

VI. Director’s Report

Julie Hunter explained at the May 22, 2023, Board Meeting, a District Rule was proposed
for that would impose a mandatory curtailment of burning in non-EPA certified woodstoves
during curtailment periods, throughout the entire non-attainment area. The Board members
asked how curtailing wood stove burning in Zone 2, the Graeagle area, would impact
Portola’s air quality since there was not a regulatory monitor in Graeagle.
District staff pulled data from non-regulatory instruments in the area and determined that
air quality in Zone 2 was not impacting Portola, and therefore mandatory curtailment in
Zone 2 would not be necessary. Staff discussed this with CARB and it was agreed that the
District Rule should only be imposed in the Zone 1 nonattainment area. This Zone includes
Portola City Limits, plus the area just outside city limits.

8



Ms. Hunter requested to bring a draft District Rule to the next meeting that will include the 
current implemented contingency measures of curtailment season being extended to 
September through April and the curtailment called at the PM2.5 level of 20 μg/m3 and will 
only be applied to Zone 1 of the Nonattainment area.   

VI. Closed Session – Pursuant to Government Code section 54957(b)(1), a closed
session will be held to discuss the appointment of an Executive Director.

Chair Roen requested to adjourn to closed session.
Julie Hunter and Dawn Lunsford were asked to leave the room.
The Board reconvened into open session.  Chair Roen stated direction was given to the Ad
Hoc committee and staff.

VII. Staff Reports/Program Updates (Informational Only)
Julie hopes to have the staff give the updates on one of the meetings.

Informational reports were giving on the following District duties:

A. Monitoring Network Update
B. Planning Program Update
C. Permitting Program Update
D. Compliance/Enforcement Program Update
E. Targeted Airshed Grant Update

VIII. Concerns of the Board

There were no concerns of the Board.

IX. Schedule next Meeting –
The next meeting was scheduled for August 28, 2023, at 1:00 PM.

X. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 2:04 P.M.

9



To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors 

From: Julie Hunter, Interim Air Pollution Control Officer 

Date: September 25, 2023 

Agenda Item: III.B 

Agenda Description: Payment Details by Vendor Board Report – June and July 2023 

Summary: Vendor Reports are available for the Board and Public to review  

Requested Action:  Review and approve reports. 

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUESTED 

Attachments:   
1.Payment Details by Vendor Board Report – June and July 2023

10



Type Date Num Memo Account Amount

Adecco
Bill Pmt -Check 06/01/2023 25989 10-5318 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -1,125.18
Bill Pmt -Check 06/08/2023 260153 10-5318 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -917.91
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 260384 10-5318 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -888.30
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 260908 10-5318 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -1,806.21

Total Adecco -4,737.60

ADP Fees
Bill Pmt -Check 06/09/2023 711633 processing charges Payd... 10-1003 · Cash, Bank Pa... -55.18
Bill Pmt -Check 06/23/2023 204836 check date 6/15/23 payro... 10-1003 · Cash, Bank Pa... -55.18
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2023 140039 time and attendance char... 10-1003 · Cash, Bank Pa... -38.72

Total ADP Fees -149.08

Agilaire LLC
Bill Pmt -Check 06/01/2023 V973272 Renew software support ... 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -2,700.00

Total Agilaire LLC -2,700.00

Albert Battaglia
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 V974125 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -900.00

Total Albert Battaglia -900.00

All Star Chimney, Eli Marchus
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 V974494 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -665.00

Total All Star Chimney, Eli Marchus -665.00

Asquith Business Service
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 V974064 1.5 EPA HOURS, PPE 6/... 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -880.00
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 V974478 PPE 6/23/23 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -371.25

Total Asquith Business Service -1,251.25

AT&T CALNET 3
Bill Pmt -Check 06/08/2023 260192 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -26.83
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 260975 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -51.89
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 260977 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -44.02

Total AT&T CALNET 3 -122.74

B of A
Bill Pmt -Check 06/01/2023 V973292 PPE 5/26/23 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -16,879.36
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 V973988 PPE 6/9/23 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -16,879.36
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 V974411 ppe 6/23/23 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -16,879.35

Total B of A -50,638.07

8:04 AM Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District
08/14/23 Payment details by Vendor Board Report

June 2023

Page 1
11



Type Date Num Memo Account Amount

CALPERS (Health)
Bill Pmt -Check 06/01/2023 912438 June 23 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -8,263.88
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 912514 July  2023 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -8,263.88

Total CALPERS (Health) -16,527.76

CALPERS (Retirement)
Bill Pmt -Check 06/01/2023 912439 PPE 5/26/23 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -2,217.19
Bill Pmt -Check 06/01/2023 912441 PPE 5/26/23 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -755.75
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 912471 PPE 6/1-6/09/23 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -755.75
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 912469 PPE 6/1-6/09/23 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -2,217.19
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 912468 Monthly ER Classic UAL ... 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -10,187.92
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 912472 Monthly ER PEPRA  ual ... 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -133.75
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 812517 PPE 5/26/23 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -755.75
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 912515 PPE 6/23/23 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -2,217.19

Total CALPERS (Retirement) -19,240.49

CALPERS 457 PLAN
Bill Pmt -Check 06/01/2023 912440 PPE 5/26/23 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -792.12
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 912470 PPE 6/1-6/09/23 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -792.12
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 912516 PPE 6/23/23 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -792.12

Total CALPERS 457 PLAN -2,376.36

CAPCOA California Air Pollution Control O
Bill Pmt -Check 06/08/2023 260146 2023 membership dues 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -1,288.15

Total CAPCOA California Air Pollution Control O -1,288.15

Collins Pine Co. Vendor
Bill Pmt -Check 06/08/2023 260154 Collins Pine co. Murray C... 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -132,000.00

Total Collins Pine Co. Vendor -132,000.00

Dawn Lundford
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 V974075 dental 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -234.00

Total Dawn Lundford -234.00

English Mountain Ranch
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 V974003 June 2023 rent & May Util 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -4,672.41

Total English Mountain Ranch -4,672.41

Feather Publishing Co.
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 260383 HIgh Country Life Magazi... 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -320.00

Total Feather Publishing Co. -320.00

8:04 AM Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District
08/14/23 Payment details by Vendor Board Report

June 2023

Page 2
12



Type Date Num Memo Account Amount

Heat Transfer Systems
Bill Pmt -Check 06/01/2023 V9736262 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -40,500.00
Bill Pmt -Check 06/08/2023 V973879 TAG2018 #2023-018 Hu... 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -13,500.00

Total Heat Transfer Systems -54,000.00

House of Print and Copy
Bill Pmt -Check 06/08/2023 260176 Bus Cards, Duane S. an... 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -86.31

Total House of Print and Copy -86.31

Hunter, Julie
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 V974520 dental 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -97.00

Total Hunter, Julie -97.00

Intermountain Disposal, Inc. Vendor
Bill Pmt -Check 06/01/2023 259955 Metal Hauling 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -165.00
Bill Pmt -Check 06/01/2023 259954 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -33.03
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 260440 TAG 2018 Residential Ya... 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -363.45
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 260439 TAG 2018 Residential Ya... 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -1,817.25

Total Intermountain Disposal, Inc. Vendor -2,378.73

J&C Enterprises
Bill Pmt -Check 06/01/2023 V973292 8 cords of firewood 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -2,200.00

Total J&C Enterprises -2,200.00

James Merzon
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 V974106 JULY 2023 rent 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -555.00

Total James Merzon -555.00

Lassen Pest Control
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 260474 wasps 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -150.00

Total Lassen Pest Control -150.00

Quincy Hot Spot
Bill Pmt -Check 06/01/2023 259924 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -20,744.70
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 260410 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -33,581.47

Total Quincy Hot Spot -54,326.17

R&B Com, Inc.
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 260417 Marketing service TAG 2... 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -1,221.00
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 260416 May 2023 charges 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -1,729.97

Total R&B Com, Inc. -2,950.97

8:04 AM Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District
08/14/23 Payment details by Vendor Board Report

June 2023

Page 3
13



Type Date Num Memo Account Amount

SDRMA Special Dist Risk Mgnt Authority
Bill Pmt -Check 06/08/2023 V973816 23-24 workman comp 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -5,533.85
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 V974385 property / liability insuran... 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -16,022.95

Total SDRMA Special Dist Risk Mgnt Authority -21,556.80

Sonoma Technology
Bill Pmt -Check 06/08/2023 V973884 TAG 2018 Winter Burn C... 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -7,333.34

Total Sonoma Technology -7,333.34

Strawser, Duane
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 V974105 dental 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -847.50
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 V974523 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -318.00

Total Strawser, Duane -1,165.50

Supervisor Adams
Bill Pmt -Check 06/01/2023 259941  Board Meeting 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -100.00
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 260953  Board Meeting 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -191.70

Total Supervisor Adams -291.70

Supervisor Bullock
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 V974488 Board Meeting 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -177.16

Total Supervisor Bullock -177.16

Supervisor Ceresola
Bill Pmt -Check 06/01/2023 V973259 Board Meeting and Travel 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -113.10
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 V974498 Board Meeting and Travel 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -100.00

Total Supervisor Ceresola -213.10

Supervisor Paul Roen
Bill Pmt -Check 06/01/2023 259956  Board Meeting/Mileage 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -120.96
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 260969  Board Meeting/Mileage 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -139.30

Total Supervisor Paul Roen -260.26

Supervisor Scofield
Bill Pmt -Check 06/01/2023 259966  Board Mtg 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -100.00
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 260985  Board Mtg 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -100.00

Total Supervisor Scofield -200.00

Teledyne Instruments
Bill Pmt -Check 06/01/2023 259970 T400 OZONE ANALYZE... 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -11,826.50
Bill Pmt -Check 06/08/2023 260198 Calibrator Asssembly T7... 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -7,928.28

Total Teledyne Instruments -19,754.78

8:04 AM Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District
08/14/23 Payment details by Vendor Board Report

June 2023

Page 4
14



Type Date Num Memo Account Amount

Tom McGowan
Bill Pmt -Check 06/01/2023 259991 Board  Meeting and Mile... 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -208.73
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 261016 Board  Meeting and Mile... 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -257.20

Total Tom McGowan -465.93

Tyrus Chimney Sweep
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 260458 TAG 2015 Slowik Chimney 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -250.00
Bill Pmt -Check 06/29/2023 260995 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -1,745.00

Total Tyrus Chimney Sweep -1,995.00

US Bank
Bill Pmt -Check 06/22/2023 260606 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -11,858.13
Bill Pmt -Check 06/22/2023 260606 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -3,122.58

Total US Bank -14,980.71

Wizix Technology Group
Bill Pmt -Check 06/01/2023 25992 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -233.94
Bill Pmt -Check 06/15/2023 260461 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -221.95

Total Wizix Technology Group -455.89

TOTAL -423,417.26

8:04 AM Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District
08/14/23 Payment details by Vendor Board Report

June 2023

Page 5
15



Type Date Num Memo Account Amount

Adecco
Bill Pmt -Check 07/13/2023 261318 10-5318 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -1,865.43
Bill Pmt -Check 07/28/2023 261728 54 hours Mejia 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -1,598.94

Total Adecco -3,464.37

ADP Fees
Bill Pmt -Check 07/07/2023 62637 PPE 6/23/23 10-1003 · Cash, Bank Pa... -57.94
Bill Pmt -Check 07/21/2023 39504 payroll processing fees 10-1003 · Cash, Bank Pa... -69.03
Bill Pmt -Check 07/28/2023 37417 processing fee 10-1003 · Cash, Bank Pa... -49.80
Bill Pmt -Check 07/28/2023 09509 processing charges, 10-1003 · Cash, Bank Pa... -38.72

Total ADP Fees -215.49

Albert Battaglia
Bill Pmt -Check 07/17/2023 V975321 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -600.00
Bill Pmt -Check 07/28/2023 V975652 TAG 2015 Woodshed co... 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -600.00

Total Albert Battaglia -1,200.00

All Star Chimney, Eli Marchus
Bill Pmt -Check 07/17/2023 V975300 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -590.00

Total All Star Chimney, Eli Marchus -590.00

Asquith Business Service
Bill Pmt -Check 07/13/2023 V97328 Date worked June 29 20... 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -275.00
Bill Pmt -Check 07/28/2023 V975604 PPE 7/21/22, EPA 4.50 h... 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -852.50

Total Asquith Business Service -1,127.50

AT&T CALNET 3
Bill Pmt -Check 07/28/2023 261788 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -51.89
Bill Pmt -Check 07/28/2023 261789 June services 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -44.01

Total AT&T CALNET 3 -95.90

B of A
Bill Pmt -Check 07/13/2023 V97257 6/24-7/7/23 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -17,330.83
Bill Pmt -Check 07/28/2023 V975531 paydate 7/27/23 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -17,885.84

Total B of A -35,216.67

CALPERS (Health)
Bill Pmt -Check 07/27/2023 812597 August 2023 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -8,263.04

Total CALPERS (Health) -8,263.04

7:39 AM Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District
08/14/23 Payment details by Vendor Board Report

July 2023

Page 1
16



Type Date Num Memo Account Amount

CALPERS (Retirement)
Bill Pmt -Check 07/13/2023 912554 Monthly ER Classic UAL ... 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -9,899.83
Bill Pmt -Check 07/13/2023 912556 PPE July 7 2023 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -847.39
Bill Pmt -Check 07/13/2023 912555 PPE July 7 2023 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -2,397.94
Bill Pmt -Check 07/27/2023 912599 PPE July 27 2023 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -872.11
Bill Pmt -Check 07/27/2023 912598 PPE 7/27/23 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -2,561.50

Total CALPERS (Retirement) -16,578.77

CALPERS 457 PLAN
Bill Pmt -Check 07/13/2023 912557 PPE July 7 2023 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -802.36
Bill Pmt -Check 07/27/2023 912600 PPE 7/27/23 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -812.60

Total CALPERS 457 PLAN -1,614.96

CAPCOA California Air Pollution Control O
Bill Pmt -Check 07/28/2023 261716 2023 spring membership ... 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -880.00

Total CAPCOA California Air Pollution Control O -880.00

Dawn Lundford
Bill Pmt -Check 07/03/2023 V974608 vision 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -852.16

Total Dawn Lundford -852.16

Diversified Resources, Inc.
Bill Pmt -Check 07/17/2023 261500 Skidder, Farmers 2022-0... 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -305,397.50

Total Diversified Resources, Inc. -305,397.50

English Mountain Ranch
Bill Pmt -Check 07/13/2023 V97271 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -4,673.32

Total English Mountain Ranch -4,673.32

Hahn, J. aka Wolf Creek Wood Stoves
Bill Pmt -Check 07/03/2023 V974594 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -9,913.93
Bill Pmt -Check 07/17/2023 V975282 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -22,000.00
Bill Pmt -Check 07/28/2023 V975589 TAG 2018, 2 woodstoves 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -8,420.90

Total Hahn, J. aka Wolf Creek Wood Stoves -40,334.83

Heat Transfer Systems
Bill Pmt -Check 07/03/2023 V974623 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -40,374.85
Bill Pmt -Check 07/17/2023 V975315 TAG 2018, #2020-474, J... 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -13,479.04
Bill Pmt -Check 07/28/2023 V975629 2 heat pumps 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -26,990.32

Total Heat Transfer Systems -80,844.21

7:39 AM Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District
08/14/23 Payment details by Vendor Board Report

July 2023

Page 2
17



Type Date Num Memo Account Amount

Hunter, Julie
Bill Pmt -Check 07/28/2023 V975639 6/26 board mileage 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -58.95

Total Hunter, Julie -58.95

Integrity Heating and AIr
Bill Pmt -Check 07/03/2023 261109 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -54,000.00

Total Integrity Heating and AIr -54,000.00

Intermountain Disposal, Inc. Vendor
Bill Pmt -Check 07/03/2023 261098 May 20 - June 10 Green... 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -2,362.73
Bill Pmt -Check 07/03/2023 261099 May 20 - June 13, green... 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -2,671.65
Bill Pmt -Check 07/17/2023 261480 6/25/23 June services 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -33.03
Bill Pmt -Check 07/17/2023 261481 Metal Hauling TAG 2018,... 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -165.00

Total Intermountain Disposal, Inc. Vendor -5,232.41

J&C Enterprises
Bill Pmt -Check 07/03/2023 V974632 Cords of wood 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -3,575.00
Bill Pmt -Check 07/17/2023 V975327 cords of wood, DOS:  Ju... 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -3,300.00

Total J&C Enterprises -6,875.00

James Merzon
Bill Pmt -Check 07/13/2023 V97365 AUGUST RENT 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -555.00

Total James Merzon -555.00

Quincy Hot Spot
Bill Pmt -Check 07/03/2023 261084 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -17,810.99
Bill Pmt -Check 07/17/2023 261464 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -6,750.00
Bill Pmt -Check 07/28/2023 261751 replacement stoves - 4 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -17,500.00

Total Quincy Hot Spot -42,060.99

R&B Com, Inc.
Bill Pmt -Check 07/28/2023 261762 June Services 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -2,437.29

Total R&B Com, Inc. -2,437.29

Strawser, Duane
Bill Pmt -Check 07/13/2023 V97363 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -1,014.00

Total Strawser, Duane -1,014.00

Tyrus Chimney Sweep
Bill Pmt -Check 07/28/2023 261811 chimney cleaning 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -750.00

Total Tyrus Chimney Sweep -750.00

7:39 AM Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District
08/14/23 Payment details by Vendor Board Report

July 2023

Page 3
18



Type Date Num Memo Account Amount

US Bank
Bill Pmt -Check 07/20/2023 261513 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -8,616.84
Bill Pmt -Check 07/20/2023 261513 20-1000 · Cash, Restrict... -6,016.92

Total US Bank -14,633.76

Wizix Technology Group
Bill Pmt -Check 07/13/2023 261393 10-1000 · Cash, Operati... -145.57

Total Wizix Technology Group -145.57

TOTAL -629,111.69

7:39 AM Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District
08/14/23 Payment details by Vendor Board Report

July 2023

Page 4
19



To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors 
 
From: Julie Hunter, Interim Air Pollution Control Officer 
 
Date: September 25, 2023 
 
Agenda Item: III.C 
 
Agenda Description: Re-Appoint Variance Hearing Board Member Greg Margason  
 
Summary:  
Hearing Board Member Greg Margason (Engineer), has served on the hearing Board and is 
up for re-appointment for the term dates September 25, 2023, to September 25, 2028 
 
Requested Action:  Review and approve re-appointment. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE REQUESTED 
 
Attachments:   
None 

 
 

20



To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors 

From:  Julie Hunter, Interim Air Pollution Control Officer 

Date: September 25, 2023 

Agenda Item: IV 

Agenda Description: Closed Session Item 

Summary:   
Pursuant to Government Code section 54957(b)(1), a closed session will be held to discuss 
the appointment of an Executive Director. 

21



To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors 
 
From:  Julie Hunter, Interim Air Pollution Control Officer 
 
Date: September 25, 2023 
 
Agenda Item: V.A 
 
Agenda Description: Ratify Contract # G22-EIDG-20 between CARB and Air District for 
Receiving $8,583 in AB 197 Emission Inventor Grant funds. 

Summary:   
Ms. Hunter signed Contract # G20-EIDG-20 for $8,583 to meet grant funding deadline.  The 
Contract is presented to the Board for final authorization today by action of ratifying. 
 
Requested Action:  
Ratify Contract # G20-EIDG-20    
 
ROLL CALL VOTE REQUESTED 
 
Attachments:  
1.Contract #G20- EIDG-20 
 
 
 

22



STATE OF CALIFORNIA  
California Environmental Protection Agency 
California Air Resources Board 

  ASD/BCGB-337 (Rev 01/2021) 

GRANT AGREEMENT COVER SHEET 

GRANT NUMBER 
G22-EIDG-20 

NAME OF GRANT PROGRAM 
AB 197 Emission Inventory District Grant 
GRANTEE NAME 
Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District 
TAXPAYER’S FEDERAL EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 
68-0124279

TOTAL GRANT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$8,583.00 

START DATE: June 30, 2023 END DATE: May 30, 2024 

This legally binding Grant Agreement, including this cover sheet and Exhibits attached hereto and incorporated by reference 
herein, is made and executed between the State of California, California Air Resources Board (CARB) and Northern Sierra 
Air Quality Management District (the “Grantee”).  

Exhibit A – Grant Agreement Provisions 
Exhibit B – Work Statement 
Exhibit B – Attachment 1 – Budget Summary 
Exhibit B – Attachment 2 – Project Disbursement Schedule 
Exhibit B – Attachment 3 – Project Schedule 

This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties.  Grantee shall not commence performance until it 
receives written approval from CARB. 

The undersigned certify under penalty of perjury that they are duly authorized to bind the parties to this Grant Agreement. 

STATE AGENCY NAME GRANTEE’S NAME (PRINT OR TYPE) 

California Air Resources Board 
SIGNATURE OF ARB’S AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY: SIGNATURE OF GRANTEE 

(AS AUTHORIZED IN RESOLUTION, LETTER OF COMMITMENT, OR LETTER OF DESIGNATION)  

TITLE 

Branch Chief 
DATE TITLE DATE 

STATE AGENCY ADDRESS GRANTEE’S ADDRESS (INCLUDE STREET, CITY, STATE AND ZIP CODE) 

1001 I Street, Sacramento, CA 95814 200 Litton Drive, Suite 320, Grass Valley, California 95945 

CERTIFICATION OF FUNDING 
 AMOUNT ENCUMBERED BY THIS AGREEMENT PROGRAM PROJECT ACTIVITY 
 $8,583.00 3510000D32 N/A N/A 
 PRIOR AMOUNT ENCUMBERED FOR THIS AGREEMENT FUND TITLE FUND NO. 
$0 Cost of Implementation Account 3237 

 TOTAL AMOUNT ENCUMBERED TO DATE (OPTIONAL USE) CHAPTER STATUTE 

 $8,583.00 43 SB154 
APPR REF ACCOUNT/ALT ACCOUNT REPORTING STRUCTURE SERVICE LOCATION FISCAL YEAR (ENY) 

001 5432000 39007100 46504 2022-2023 

Julie D Hunter

Interim Air Pollution Control Officer 06-22-2023

23



1 of 26 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Grant Agreement Provisions 
 

A. The parties agree to comply with the requirements and conditions contained herein.   
 
B. GRANT AGREEMENT SUMMARY AND AMENDMENTS (IF APPLICABLE) 

 
Project Title: Quality Assurance Review of Point Source Emissions Data 
 
Grant Funding Amount: $ 8,583.00 

 
C. GRANT AGREEMENT PARTIES AND CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

1.  This Grant is from the California Air Resources Board (hereinafter referred to as 
CARB or the Board) to the Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District 
(hereinafter referred to as Grantee). 

 
2.  The CARB Project Liaison is Kevin Eslinger.  Correspondence regarding this 

project must be directed to: 
     
    Kevin Eslinger 
    California Air Resources Board 
    Air Quality Planning and Science Division 
    P.O. Box 2815 
    Sacramento, California 95812 
    Phone: (279) 208-7783 
    Email: Kevin.Eslinger@arb.ca.gov  
 

3.  The Grantee Liaison is Julie Hunter.  Correspondence regarding this project must 
be directed to: 

 
Julie Hunter 
Interim APCO  
Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District 
200 Litton Drive, Suite 320 
Grass Valley, California 95945 
Phone: (530) 832-0102 ext. 513 
Email: julieh@myairdistrict.com 

 
D. DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARD APPROVAL 

 
Prior to the execution of this Grant Agreement, the Grantee is required to submit to 
CARB a resolution, minute order, or other approval of its governing board that 
authorizes the Grantee to enter into this Grant Agreement and that commits the 
Grantee to comply with the requirements of this Grant Agreement. Alternatively, the 

24



2 of 26 
 

 
 

Grantee and CARB may execute this Grant Agreement before a Grantee has 
submitted this governing board resolution, minute order, or other approval to CARB, 
however, the Grantee may not perform work under this Grant Agreement until the 
Grantee has submitted this governing board resolution, minute order, or other 
approval to CARB. CARB will terminate this Grant Agreement if the Grantee has not 
submitted this governing board resolution, minute order, or other approval to the 
CARB Project Liaison on or before August 31, 2023.  
 

E. TIME PERIOD 
 

1. Performance of work or other expenses billable to CARB under this Grant may 
commence after full execution of this Grant Agreement by both parties.  
Performance on this Grant ends once the Grantee has submitted the Final 
Report or if this Grant Agreement is terminated, whichever is earlier. 

 
2. Upon completion of the project milestones, the Grantee must submit a draft Final 

Report to the CARB Project Liaison no later than March 1, 2024. 
 

3. The Final Report and the final Grant Disbursement Request must be received by 
CARB within thirty (30) days of project completion but no later than May 1, 2024. 
 

4. The CARB Executive Officer retains the authority to terminate or reduce the 
dollar amount of this Grant if by December 1, 2023, forty (40) percent of the 
project scope of work has not been completed by the Grantee. In the event of 
such termination, Section G. Fiscal Administration, 3. Suspension of Payments 
and Early Grant Termination of this agreement shall apply.  
 

5. If additional funding becomes available, the CARB Executive Officer retains the 
authority to amend this Grant to provide additional disbursement to the Grantee 
to complete tasks related to the Scope of Work for this Grant Agreement.   
 

F. SCOPE OF WORK 
 

This section defines the respective duties and requirements of CARB and the 
Grantee in implementing this Grant Agreement. In sum, the Grantee shall review 
and update data currently stored or being uploaded into the California Emissions 
Inventory Development and Reporting System (CEIDARS) database. If additional 
funding becomes available, this Grant Agreement may be amended in subsequent 
years to provide additional funding to the Grantee to improve the future data loaded 
into the CEIDARS database. 

 
1. CARB is responsible for the following: 

 
a. Participating in a project kick-off meeting or conference call and ongoing 

coordination with the Grantee to discuss project activities and guide project 
implementation; 

25



3 of 26 

b. Reviewing and approving elements developed by the Grantee for
implementation of the project, such as Progress and Final Reports;

c. Reviewing and approving the Grant Disbursement Request Forms and
distributing funds to the Grantee in accordance with Exhibit B, Attachment 3
Project Disbursement Schedule if the milestones have been met;

d. Providing project oversight and accountability (in conjunction with the
Grantee); and

e. Ensuring compliance with the applicable requirements of this Grant
Agreement.

2. The Grantee is responsible for the following:

Development and implementation of defined project tasks as described below.
Minimum duties and requirements of the Grantee include:

a. Conducting a project kick-off meeting or conference call and maintaining
ongoing project coordination with the CARB Project Liaison;

b. Reviewing, updating, and submitting to CARB quality assured criteria and
toxic pollutant emissions data for calendar year 2022 for stationary sources of
criteria pollutant emissions and toxic air contaminants under the Grantee’s
jurisdiction;

c. Overseeing the project budget and funds; and

d. Submitting a draft Final Report, Grant Disbursement Requests, and a Final
Report to CARB.

3. Project Development and Implementation

The Grantee’s Scope of Work includes the following tasks and project elements:

a. Review and update the district facilities1 in CARB’s 2022 CEIDARS emission
inventory database that have been rolled over from prior inventory years.  The
Grantee should make a determination whether any facilities in their
jurisdiction should be added to the database and report the required
information per Section F.3.b below, giving priority to facilities subject to
CARB’s Regulation for the Mandatory Reporting of Greenhouse Gas
Emissions (MRR facilities).  In addition, the Grantee will work with CARB’s
emission inventory staff to remove closed facilities from the CEIDARS 2022

1 For purposes of this Grant Agreement, “facility” means a stationary source within the Grantee’s 
jurisdiction that is a reportable source of criteria pollutant or toxic air contaminant emissions. 

26



4 of 26 
 

 
 

facility tables. 
 

b. Review and, to the extent that the Grantee has the necessary data, update 
the following CEIDARS tables for each facility in operation in 2022: 

 
i. FACILITY tables (FAC) – The Grantee must review and update the 

name, address, geospatial coordinates and, to the extent available, 
other basic information for each emitting facility in CEIDARS. 
 

ii. Criteria and toxics EMISSION tables (EMS and TEMS) – These tables 
contain the actual emissions for each emitting process.  For each 
pollutant emitted, the Grantee must review and, if data are available, 
update information on the amounts emitted annually. 
 

c. Reporting Applicability. 
 

The Grantee must report into CEIDARS annual criteria pollutant emissions 
for all facilities that emit 10 tons/year or more of any of the criteria pollutants 
listed in section F.3.d below.  In addition, the Grantee must report annual 
toxic pollutant emissions data collected under the Grantee’s AB 2588 Air 
Toxics Hots Spots Information and Assessment Act program in accordance 
with the “Air Toxics Hot Spots Emission Inventory Criteria and Guidelines” 
(located at https://www.arb.ca.gov/ab2588/2588guid.htm). 

 
d. Pollutants to be Reported. 

 
When updating the CEIDARS emissions tables described in Section F.3.b 
above, the Grantee must report emissions for the following criteria 
pollutants: total organic gases (TOG), nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulfur oxides 
(SOx), carbon monoxide (CO), particulate matter (PM), lead (Pb) and 
ammonia (NH3).  In lieu of TOG and PM, the Grantee has the option of 
reporting reactive organic gases (ROG), and PM10 and/or PM2.5; however, 
if these three pollutants are not reported, CARB will calculate them based 
upon the respective TOG and PM speciation profiles.  The Grantee must 
also report emissions of toxics pollutants that are listed in Appendix A-I 
(located at https://www.arb.ca.gov/ab2588/final/a1.pdf), in accordance with 
Section VIII.E of the “Air Toxics Hot Spots Emission Inventory Criteria and 
Guidelines”. 

 
4. Project Kick-off and Ongoing Coordination  

 
Before initiating work on the project, a one-time kick-off meeting or conference 
call will be held between the Grantee and CARB project management staff.  The 
purpose of this meeting is to discuss items such as the proposed work plan, 
details of task performance, and issues needing clarification or resolution prior 
to initiating work.  Ongoing Grantee coordination and review meetings with the 

27



5 of 26 

CARB Project Liaison to discuss project status will be held as needed.  
Additional meetings may be scheduled at the discretion of the CARB Project 
Liaison.  These meetings may be conducted by phone if deemed appropriate by 
the CARB Project Liaison.   

5. Progress Reports

The Grantee must submit a Progress Report to CARB by December 1, 2023,
providing a summary of the work completed. Alternately, if all the tasks identified
in the Scope of Work have been completed, the Grantee may submit a Draft
Final Report.

Progress Reports may be submitted electronically and, at a minimum, must
include:

a. Title of project, name of Grantee, and Grant number;

b. Summary of work completed and in progress, noting progress toward
completion of tasks and milestones identified in the work plan;

c. Identified problems or concerns and proposed solutions, if applicable;

If the Grantee is requesting a grant disbursement, the Progress Report must also 
include: 

d. Accounting summary of Grant funds expended; and

e. Itemized invoice showing all costs for which reimbursement is being
requested.

6. Final Report

The Grantee must submit a Draft Final Report by March 1, 2024, providing a
summary of any additional work conducted after the Progress Report.  If CARB
staff determine that revisions are necessary, the Grantee must submit a Final
Report by May 1, 2024.  At a minimum, the Final Report must include the
following:

a. Title of project, name of Grantee, and Grant number;

b. Accounting summary of Grant funds expended;

c. Summary of work completed; and

d. Narrative of how the milestones have been met.

28



6 of 26 
 

 
 

7. Grant Disbursement Requests 
 
Upon completion of all the tasks identified in the Scope of Work, the Grantee 
may submit a Grant Disbursement Request using the AB 197 Grant 
Disbursement Request Form.  Disbursement Requests must be accompanied by 
a Progress Report or Final Report. 

 
 
G. FISCAL ADMINISTRATION 
 

1. Budget 
 
a. The maximum amount of this Grant is up to $ 8,583.00.  Under no 

circumstance will CARB reimburse the Grantee for more than this amount.  A 
written Grant Agreement amendment is required whenever there is a change 
to the amount of this Grant. 

 
b. The budget for this project is shown in Exhibit B, Attachment 2.  Grant 

Disbursement Requests for the project and administration funds must not 
exceed the Grant amount.   

 
c. The total funding may be reallocated by CARB at CARB’s sole discretion in 

the event that the Grantee requests less than the total funds allocated for the 
project. 

 
2. Grant Disbursements 

 
All disbursements from the total Grant award will be made following CARB’s 
review and approval of Grant Disbursement Request Forms documenting 
completion of project milestones.  

 
a. The Grantee must submit original signed Grant Disbursement Requests via 

mail to the CARB Project Liaison.  A disbursement request must be made in 
conjunction with completed milestones documented in a Progress Report, 
Draft Final Report, and/or Final Report.  Grant payments are subject to 
CARB’s approval of the Progress Report or Draft Final Report or Final Report 
and any accompanying deliverables.  A payment will not be made if the 
CARB Project Liaison deems that a milestone has not been accomplished or 
documented, a deliverable meeting specification has not been provided, 
claimed expenses are not documented, not valid per the budget, not 
reasonable, or the Grantee has not met other terms of the Grant Agreement.   

 
b. The Division Chief of the Air Quality Planning and Science Division or 

designee of CARB may review the CARB Project Liaison’s approval or 
disapproval of a Grant Disbursement Request.  No reimbursement will be 
made for expenses that, in the judgment of the Division Chief of the Air 

29



7 of 26 
 

 
 

Quality Planning and Science Division or designee of CARB, are not 
reasonable or do not comply with the Grant Agreement.  CARB will have 
sole discretion to accelerate the timeline for allowable disbursements of 
administrative and project funds identified in Exhibit B, Attachment 3, 
necessary to assure the goals of the project are met.  
 

c. CARB will withhold payment of ten (10) percent of administrative funds until 
completion of all work and CARB’s approval of the Grantee’s Final Report.  
It is the Grantee’s responsibility to submit a Grant Disbursement Request for 
this final disbursement of funds. 
 

d. CARB shall disburse funds in accordance with the California Prompt 
Payment Act, Government Code section 927, et. seq.  

 
3. Suspension of Payments and Grant Agreement Termination 

 
a. CARB reserves the right to issue a grant suspension order in the event that a 

dispute should arise.  The grant suspension order will be in effect until the 
dispute has been resolved or the Grant Agreement has been terminated.  If 
the Grantee chooses to continue work on the project after receiving a grant 
suspension order, the Grantee will not be reimbursed for any expenditure 
incurred during the suspension in the event CARB terminates the Grant 
Agreement.  If CARB rescinds the suspension order and does not terminate 
the Grant Agreement, CARB at its sole discretion will reimburse the Grantee 
for any expenses incurred during the suspension that CARB deems 
reimbursable in accordance with the terms of the Grant Agreement. 
 

b. CARB reserves the right to terminate this Grant Agreement upon thirty (30) 
days’ written notice to the Grantee.  In case of early termination, the 
Grantee will submit a Progress Report covering activities up to, and 
including, the termination date and following the requirements specified 
herein and in Section H of these provisions.   

 
c. CARB reserves the right to immediately terminate this Grant Agreement in 

accordance with Exhibit B, Attachment 1 – General Grant Provisions. 
 

4. Contingency Provision 
 

In the event this Grant Agreement is terminated for whatever reason, the CARB 
Executive Officer or designee reserves the right in his or her sole discretion to 
award any remaining funds to other projects. 
 

5. Documentation of Use of Project Funds 
 
Project funds may be used for administrative costs of accomplishing the tasks 
identified in the Scope of Work. Administrative costs include: the Grantee’s 

30



8 of 26 
 

 
 

personnel costs; fringe benefit costs; operating costs (including rent, supplies, 
and equipment); indirect costs (general administrative services, office space, and 
telephone services); travel expenses and per diem rates set at the rate specified 
by California Department of Human Resources (CalHR)2; overhead; consultant 
fees (if pre-approved by CARB); and printing, records retention, and mailing 
costs.  

 
a. The Grantee must maintain documentation of all project administration funds, 

including the following: 
 

i. Personnel documentation must make use of timesheets or other labor 
tracking software.  Duty statements or other documentation may also be 
used to verify the number of staff and actual hours or percent of time 
staff devoted to project administration;  

 
ii. Administration funds for subcontractor(s) must be documented with 

copies of the contract and invoices;   
 

iii. Printing, mailing, records retention, and travel expenses must be 
documented with receipts and/or invoices; 

 
iv. Any reimbursement for necessary travel and per diem must be at rates 

not to exceed those amounts paid to the State’s represented employees.  
No travel outside the State of California will be reimbursed unless prior 
written authorization is obtained from CARB.  CalHR’s travel and per 
diem reimbursement amounts may be found online at 
http://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/pages/travel-reimbursements.aspx.  
Reimbursement must be at the State travel and per diem amounts that 
are current as of the date costs are incurred by the Grantee; and 

 
v. If indirect costs are used to document administration funds for the 

project, the Grantee must describe how these costs are determined. 
 

b. The above documentation, records, and referenced materials must be made 
available for review during monitoring visits and audits by CARB, or its 
designee.  These records must be retained for a minimum of three (3) years 
after completion of the Grant Agreement. 
 

 
H. PROJECT MONITORING 
 

1. Meetings with CARB 
  

a. Project kick-off:  A one-time kick-off meeting or conference call will be held 
between the Grantee’s key project personnel and CARB project 

                                            
2 Under no circumstances should the Grantee exceed travel expenses and per diem rates set by CalHR. 

31



9 of 26 
 

 
 

management staff.  The purpose of this meeting is to discuss items such as 
the proposed work plan, details of task performance, and issues needing 
clarification or resolution prior to initiating work. 

 
b. Ongoing coordination and review meetings:  Ongoing Grantee coordination 

and review conference calls or meetings with the CARB Project Liaison to 
discuss project status will be held on an as needed basis. 

 
c. Site visits:  Site visits may be established by the CARB Project Liaison 

during the term of this Grant Agreement. 
 

2. Technical Monitoring 
 

a. Any changes to the Scope of Work or timeline for the project requires the 
prior written approval of the CARB Project Liaison, and, depending on the 
scope and extent of the changes, may require a written Grant Agreement 
Amendment.   

 
b. The Grantee must notify the CARB Project Liaison and Grant Coordinator 

immediately, in writing, if any circumstances arise (technical, economic, or 
otherwise), which might jeopardize completion of the project, or if there is a 
change in key project personnel. 

 
c. In addition to the Draft Final and Final Reports, the Grantee must provide 

information requested by the CARB Project Liaison that is needed to assess 
progress in completing tasks and meeting the objectives of the project. 

 
d. Any change in budget allocations, re-definition of deliverables, or extension of 

the project schedule must be requested in writing to the CARB Project Liaison 
and approved by CARB, in its sole discretion.  Such changes may require a 
written Grant Agreement Amendment. 

 
I. DOCUMENTING EXPENDITURE OF STATE FUNDS 
 

The Grantee must provide CARB with documentation accounting for the proper 
expenditure of CARB funds.  The documentation must be provided in the Draft Final 
Report submitted to CARB.  A Final Report must be submitted after all project funds 
have been expended. 

 
J. OVERSIGHT AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 

The Grantee must comply with all oversight responsibilities identified herein. 
 

1. CARB or its designee may recoup project funds which were received based 
upon misinformation or fraud, or for which a Grantee or its subcontractor(s), or 

32



10 of 26 

a participant in the project is in significant or continual non-compliance with the 
terms of this Grant Agreement or state law. 

2. CARB or its designee reserves the right to audit at any time during the duration
of this Grant Agreement the Grantee’s costs of performing the Grant and to
refuse payment of any reimbursable costs or expenses that in the opinion of
CARB or its designee are unsubstantiated or unverified.  The Grantee shall
cooperate with CARB or its designee including, but not limited to, promptly
providing all information and documents requested, such as all financial records,
documents, and other information pertaining to reimbursable costs, and any
matching costs and expenses.

3. The Grantee shall retain all records referred to above and provide them for
examination and audit by the State for three (3) years after final payment under
this Grant Agreement.

4. The Grantee shall develop and maintain accounting procedures to track
reservation and expenditures by grant award, fiscal year, and of all funding
sources.

33



11 of 26 
 

 
 

Exhibit B, Attachment I 
 

General Terms and Conditions: 
 

1. Use of Terms: A subgrant or subaward is a grant or award provided by the Grantee 
pursuant to this Grant Agreement to a “subawardee” or “subgrantee” that is used to 
support a project that the subawardee or subgrantee carries out in support of their 
own program.  The subawardee or subgrantee has responsibility for programmatic 
decision-making and does not make a “profit” or otherwise receive reimbursement in 
excess of its actual costs.  In contrast, Grantee hires a “contractor” or “vendor” under 
a procurement contract to provide goods and services for items the Grantee itself 
needs to carry out this Grant.  A contractor or vendor does not make programmatic 
decisions but simply provides the goods and services to the Grantee in the same 
manner they do with other customers. Subawardee, subgrantee, contractor, and 
vendor are collectively referred to herein as “Recipient”. 

2. Additional Remedies: 

 Without limiting any of the parties’ other remedies, and subject to Section 15 
– Disputes below, in the event that CARB determines that recouping some or 
all of the grant funds is necessary due to material breach, which includes, by 
way of example, but not limitation, falsification, misspending, misinformation, 
misappropriation, fraud, gross negligence, violation of a conflict of interest 
law, violation of a discrimination law, disbarment by any local, state or federal 
agency or department, or any other failure to comply in a way that impacts the 
performance of this Grant Agreement in a material way, Grantee agrees to 
return some or all of the grant funds, as requested by CARB, which shall not 
be greater than the amount of grant funds disbursed to Grantee which the 
state of California may be entitled to receive due to a material breach as 
described above, plus any interest earned from those grant funds, within sixty 
(60) days of written notification from CARB. In addition, CARB may seek 
other remedies available by law.   

 Grantee understands, acknowledges and agrees that Grantee’s failure to 
comply in whole or in part with any material term or condition of this Grant 
Agreement is, in each instance, a material breach of the Grant Agreement. 
The parties agree that there may be certain material breaches that will result 
in undue hardship and damages to the State of California and CARB, some or 
all of which is impossible to easily calculate. Grantee understands, 
acknowledges and agrees that Grantee’s said compliance is a precondition to 
the award and distribution of Grant Funds and a continuing obligation of 
Grantee during the Term of the Grant Agreement and for any additional time 
period required by law or this Grant Agreement (e.g., required records 
retention periods).  

 Subject to Section 15 – Disputes below, in the event that CARB determines 
recouping some or all of the grant funds awarded to a Recipient is necessary 
due to Recipient’s material breach, which includes, by way of example, but 
not limitation, falsification, misspending, misinformation, misappropriation, 

34



12 of 26 
 

 
 

fraud, gross negligence, violation of a conflict of interest law, violation of a 
discrimination law, disbarment by any local, state or federal agency or 
department, or any other failure to comply in a way that impacts the 
performance of this Grant Agreement in a material way, Grantee agrees to 
take all reasonable and timely efforts to require said Recipient, within sixty 
(60) days of written notification from CARB, to return some or all of the grant 
funds, as requested by CARB, which shall not exceed the amount of grant 
funds which the state of California may be entitled to receive due to a material 
breach as described above, plus any interest earned from those grant funds.   

 The Parties agree that quantifying the losses arising from a material breach 
by a Recipient may be inherently difficult insofar as the breach may cause 
CARB and the State of California irreparable, serious or substantial harm or 
damage to taxpayers or to the environment. The Parties further stipulate that 
the amount in subsection 2.c. above of liquidated damages is not a penalty, 
but rather a reasonable measure of damages based upon the Parties' 
experience and given the nature of the losses that may result from said 
breach. The Parties hereto have computed, estimated, and agreed upon the 
sum as an attempt to make a reasonable forecast of probable actual loss 
because of the difficulty of estimating with exactness the damages which will 
result.  

 The rights and obligations stated in this Grant Agreement shall apply even if 
there is a concurrent noncompliance or violation of air quality rules, 
regulations or laws caused by any third party. 

 CARB reserves the right to prohibit any Grantee or Recipient from 
participating in existing or future CARB programs, projects or grants due to its 
non-compliance with any applicable term or condition of this Grant Agreement 
or due to misinformation, misrepresentation, fraud, misuse of funds as it 
relates to this Grant Agreement or as otherwise allowed by any law.  

 Grantee shall, for each occurrence, document and immediately report to 
CARB any and all suspected or known breach of agreement, fraud, 
misrepresentations, abuse of discretion or misuse of Grant funds by a 
Recipient.   

 Grantee shall fully cooperate and work with CARB to investigate, resolve and 
take appropriate action to enforce the terms and conditions of the Grant 
Agreement and each agreement funded by this Grant Agreement, including 
appropriately prosecuting or litigating any civil or criminal claims (including for 
recapture of Grant Funds) as determined reasonably necessary by CARB or 
its representative, in consultation with Grantee.   

 Alternative Enforcement. The remedies set out in this Grant Agreement are 
contractual in nature. Nothing stated in this Grant Agreement in any way 
limits, prevents or precludes the State of California from taking any 
enforcement action, exercising any police power or prosecuting any violation 
of law. 

35



13 of 26 

3. Additional Required Terms for Recipient Agreements Funded by this Grant:
All written agreements and amendments executed after the effective date of this
Grant Agreement, including but not limited to subawards, subgrants, and
procurement contracts, entered into by and between Grantee and a Recipient using
or applying Grant Funds (in whole or in part) to fulfill or perform any provision of this
Grant Agreement shall also contain the following language (or similar language with
the same meaning and intent) listed below to the extent applicable or feasible as
determined by Grantee.

Conflict of interest. Recipient certifies, represents and warrants that it is in 
compliance with all applicable state and federal conflict of interest laws on the 
date said agreement is signed and shall remain in compliance with all such 
laws during the term of the agreement and for any other period required by 
said applicable federal or state law as they pertain to Recipient’s agreement.  
Recipient further certifies, represents and warrants that it has no interest, and 
shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which will conflict with 
Recipient’s ability to impartially perform under, or complete the tasks 
described in the agreement with Grantee.  The Recipient acknowledges, 
understands and accepts that Recipient must disclose any direct or indirect 
financial interest or situation which may pose an actual, apparent, or potential 
conflict of interest.  The Recipient acknowledges, understands and accepts 
that the nature and extent of any actual, apparent, or potential conflict of 
interest may be a basis for disqualification from receiving any funds.  The 
Recipient certifies, represents and warrants that Recipient will immediately 
advise the Grantee in writing of any potential new conflicts of interest as they 
arise. 

Cooperation with Audits.  Recipient shall cooperate fully, without delay, in all 
audits, inquiries and investigations initiated by or on behalf of the Grantee 
and/or the State of California concerning or relating to compliance with local, 
state or federal air quality laws, or compliance with the Grant Agreement, 
including but not limited to timely submission of any and all records requested 
and full cooperation with any on-site inspections. 

Payment (Recapture) on Demand.  Recipient shall, upon notification by the 
Grantee and/or CARB or their authorized representative(s) of an 
overpayment, a wrongful payment or a violation of or failure to comply with 
the agreement remit to the Grantee or its authorized representative the 
requested amount within 60 days from the date of issuance of said notice. 

Third Party Beneficiary.  The Recipient acknowledges, accepts and agrees 
that the State of California, acting by and through the California Air Resources 
Board (CARB), is an intended third-party beneficiary to the agreement.   

Authorized Signature.  The Recipient agrees and acknowledges that it has 
signed or has authorized the signing of the agreement with the Grantee, and 
by doing so hereby declares under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the 
State of California, that all statements and responses made therein are true 
and correct, with full knowledge that all statements and responses are subject 

36



14 of 26 

to investigation and that any incomplete, unclear, false, or dishonest response 
may be grounds for disqualification from receiving any existing or further 
funding or participating in any programs or projects using the CARB-provided 
or Grantee-provided funds, or from doing business with the State of California 
or the Grantee.  The Recipient acknowledges, understands and accepts that 
by providing or making any false statements or providing false information, 
the Recipient may be in a violation of the California False Claims Act 
(Government Code Section 12650 et seq.). Recipient certifies, represents and 
warrants that the individual signing on its behalf herein below is an authorized 
representative of Recipient with full power and legal authority to sign below 
and by said signature Recipient is bound to and will comply with all terms, 
conditions and obligations set forth in the agreement, as applicable. 

Compliance with Air Quality Laws.  Recipient understands, acknowledges and 
agrees that compliance with all applicable federal, state and local air quality 
rules, regulations and statutes is a precondition to the receipt or use of Grant 
funds and is a continuing obligation during the term of the agreement and for 
any other period required by federal or state law.   

If either the Grantee or the state of California determines, within its or their 
sole and absolute discretion, that recouping some or all of the grant funds 
awarded to a Recipient is necessary due to Recipient’s material breach, 
which includes, by way of example, but not limitation, falsification, 
misspending, misinformation, misappropriation, fraud, gross negligence, 
violation of a conflict of interest law, violation of a discrimination law, 
disbarment by any local, state or federal agency or department, or any other 
failure to comply in a way that impacts the performance of the agreement in a 
material way, then Recipient, upon demand, shall pay to Grantee or the state 
of California as recaptured funds or liquidated damages, some or all grant 
funds, as requested by the state of California, which shall not exceed the 
amount of grant funds which the state of California may be entitled to receive 
due to a material breach as described above, plus any interest earned from 
those grant funds. The Recipient agrees that quantifying the losses arising 
from a breach may be inherently difficult insofar as breach may cause the 
state of California or the Grantee irreparable, serious or substantial harm or 
damage, including to taxpayers or to the environment. Recipient further 
stipulates that the agreed upon amount of recaptured funds or liquidated 
damages is not a penalty, but rather a reasonable measure of damages 
based upon experience and given the nature of the losses that may result 
from said breach. The Recipient agrees that the recaptured funds or 
liquidated damages have been computed, estimated and agreed upon by all 
parties and represents an attempt to make a reasonable forecast of probable 
actual loss because of the difficulty of estimating with exactness the damages 
which will result. This obligation shall apply even if there is a concurrent 
noncompliance or violation of air quality rules, regulations or laws caused by 
a third party.  The remedies set out in this paragraph are contractual in 
nature. 

37



15 of 26 
 

 
 

 Nothing stated herein above in any way limits, prevents or precludes the 
State of California or the Grantee from taking any enforcement action, 
exercising any police power or prosecuting any violation of law against 
Recipient, its employees, officers, agents, assigns, representatives, 
contractors, subcontractors, affiliates, grantees, subawardees, subgrantees, 
or any third parties. 

 Survival.  Recipient acknowledges, agrees and accepts that those sections 
and provisions pertaining to indemnity, recordkeeping, audit, assurances, 
third party beneficiary status, remedies for non-compliance with material 
terms and conditions, return or recapture of funds, liquidated damages, 
requirements under state and federal law, conflict of interest, and 
confidentiality, shall survive the termination, cancellation or expiration of the 
agreement. 

 All Recipient agreements must also contain, at a minimum, all of the 
following: 

i. A clear and accurate description of the material, products, or services 
to be procured as well as a detailed budget and timeline. 

ii. A detailed budget and timeline. 

iii. Provisions that allow for administrative, contractual, or legal remedies 
in instances where Recipient violates or breaches the agreement 
terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as may be 
appropriate. 

iv. Provisions for termination by the Grantee, including termination 
procedures and the basis for settlement. 

v. A statement that assignments are prohibited without the advanced 
written consent of CARB and Grantee. 

vi. Language conforming to all provisions applicable to a subgrant or 
subaward of funds contained in this Grant Agreement. 

4. Amendment: No amendment or variation of the terms of this Grant Agreement shall 
be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties, and approved as required. No 
oral understanding or agreement not incorporated in the Grant Agreement or 
approved as required under the Grant Agreement is binding on any of the parties. 

5. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Accessibility: Grantee must 
ensure that all products and services submitted to CARB, uploaded, or otherwise 
provided to CARB by the Grantee and/or its Recipients under this Grant, including 
but not limited to data, software, plans, drawings, specifications, reports, operating 
manuals, notes, and other written or graphic work prepared in the course of 
performance of this Grant Agreement (collectively, the “Work”), comply with Web 
Content Accessibility Guidelines 2.0, level AA, and any subsequent versions, and 
otherwise meet the accessibility requirements set forth in California Government 
Code Sections 7405 and 11135, Section 202 of the federal Americans with 
Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. § 12132), and Section 508 of the federal Rehabilitation 

38



16 of 26 
 

 
 

Act (29 U.S.C. § 794d) and the regulations promulgated thereunder (36 C.F.R. 
Part 1194) (collectively, the “Accessibility Requirements”). For any Work provided 
in   PDF format, Grantee shall also provide an electronic version in the original 
electronic format (for example, Microsoft Word or Adobe InDesign). 

CARB may request documentation from the Grantee of compliance with the 
Accessibility Requirements and may perform testing to verify compliance. 
Deviations from the Accessibility Requirements are permitted only by written 
consent by CARB. 

6. Assignment: This Grant Agreement is not assignable by the Grantee, either in 
whole or in part, without the consent of CARB in the form of a formal written 
amendment. 

7. Assurances: CARB reserves the right, but not the obligation, to seek further written 
assurances from the Grantee and any Recipient that the work performed under this 
Grant Agreement will be performed consistent with the terms and conditions of this 
Grant Agreement. 

8. Audit: Grantee agrees that CARB, the California Department of General Services, 
California Department of Finance, the California State Auditor, or their designated 
representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Grant and all State funds 
received.  Grantee agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a minimum 
of three (3) years after the term of this Grant is completed, unless a longer period of 
records retention is stipulated.  Grantee agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to 
such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records.  Further, 
Grantee agrees to include similar right of the State to audit records and interview 
staff in any agreement related to the performance of this Grant Agreement. 

9. Availability of funds: It is mutually agreed that if the Budget Act of the current year 
and/or any subsequent years covered under this Grant does not appropriate 
sufficient funds for the program, this Grant shall be of no further force and effect. In 
this event, the State shall have no liability to pay any funds whatsoever to Grantee or 
to furnish any other considerations under this Grant and Grantee shall not be 
obligated to perform any provisions of this grant.  

10. CARB as a Third Party Beneficiary:  Grantee represents, warrants and agrees that 
CARB is and shall remain a third party beneficiary to any and all written agreements 
entered into between Grantee and any and all third parties where such agreement(s) 
are to fulfill or are for performance of any of the terms or conditions of this Grant 
Agreement. 

11. Compliance with law, regulations, etc.: The Grantee agrees that during the term 
of this Grant Agreement, it will, at all times, comply with and require Recipients to 
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, guidelines, 
regulations, statutes, and requirements. 

12. Computer software: The Grantee certifies that it has appropriate systems and 
controls in place to ensure that State funds will not be used in the performance of 

39



17 of 26 
 

 
 

this Grant Agreement for the acquisition, operation or maintenance of computer 
software in violation of copyright laws. 

13. Confidentiality: Prior to CARB releasing any information to Grantee which CARB 
has designated as confidential, CARB will notify Grantee in writing of such 
confidential designation. Except as may be required by law, such as the California 
Public Records Act (California Government Code Section 7920.000 et seq.), court 
order, or legal process (such as a subpoena), no record which has been designated 
as confidential by CARB shall be disclosed by the Grantee.  If the Grantee believes 
disclosure of a confidential record may be required, the Grantee shall first give 
CARB at least 10 calendar days written notice prior to any planned disclosure so 
CARB can seek an order preventing disclosure from a court of competent 
jurisdiction. 

14. Conflict of interest The Grantee certifies that it is, and shall remain, in 
compliance with all applicable State and federal conflict of interest laws during 
the entire Term of this Grant Agreement. The Grantee will have no interest, and 
shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which will conflict with its ability to 
impartially perform under, or complete the tasks described in, this Grant. The 
Grantee must disclose any direct or indirect financial interest or situation which 
may pose an actual, apparent, or potential conflict of interest with its duties 
throughout the Grant Term. CARB may consider the nature and extent of any 
actual, apparent, or potential conflict of interest in the Grantee’s ability to perform 
the Grant. The Grantee must immediately advise CARB in writing of any potential 
new conflicts of interest throughout the Grant Term.  

15. Disputes: Prior to exercising any rights or remedies which may arise as a result 
of a breach of this Grant Agreement, or for any disagreements or conflicts arising 
from implementation of this Grant Agreement, the party alleging the breach, 
disagreement or conflict will provide the other party written notice of the term or 
condition which is alleged to have been breached, or the disagreement or conflict 
that has arisen. The Grantee shall continue with the responsibilities under this 
Grant Agreement during any such dispute, unless otherwise directed in writing by 
CARB.  Grantee staff or management and CARB staff or management shall work 
together in good faith to resolve any such disputes arising from implementation of 
this Grant Agreement.  However, any disputes that cannot be resolved at the 
management level within 30 days of when the issue is first raised with CARB staff 
shall be subject to resolution by the CARB Executive Officer, or his designated 
representative.  Nothing contained in this paragraph is intended to limit any of the 
rights or remedies that the parties may have under law. 

16. Environmental justice: In the performance of this Grant Agreement, the Grantee 
shall conduct its programs, policies, and activities that substantially affect human 
health or the environment in a manner that ensures the fair treatment of people of 
all races, cultures, and income levels, including minority populations and low-
income populations of the State.  

17. Fiscal management systems and accounting standards: The Grantee agrees 
that, at a minimum, its fiscal control and accounting procedures will be sufficient to 

40



18 of 26 
 

 
 

permit tracing of Grant funds to a level of expenditure adequate to establish that 
such funds have not been used in violation of law or this Grant Agreement.  Unless 
otherwise prohibited by law, the Grantee further agrees that it will maintain separate 
Grant award accounts in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  

18. Force majeure: Neither CARB nor the Grantee must be liable for or deemed to be in 
default for any delay or failure in performance under this Grant Agreement or 
interruption of services resulting, directly or indirectly, from acts of God, enemy  or 
hostile governmental action, civil commotion, strikes, government orders, national or 
state declared pandemics, lockouts, labor disputes, fire, flood, earthquakes, or other 
physical natural disaster. If either party intends to invoke this clause to excuse or 
delay performance, the party invoking the clause must provide     written notice to the 
other party immediately but no later than within fifteen (15) calendar days of when 
the force majeure event occurs and reasons that the force majeure event is 
preventing that party from or delaying that party in performing its obligations under 
this Grant. CARB may terminate this Grant Agreement immediately in writing without 
penalty in the event Grantee invokes this clause. 

If the Grant Agreement is not terminated by CARB pursuant to this clause, upon 
completion of the event of force majeure, the Grantee must as soon as reasonably 
practicable recommence the performance of its obligations under this Grant 
Agreement. The Grantee must also provide a revised schedule to minimize the 
effects of the delay caused by the event of force majeure. An event of force majeure 
does not relieve a party from liability for an obligation which arose before the 
occurrence of that event. 

19. Governing law and venue: This Grant Agreement is governed by and shall be 
interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  CARB and the 
Grantee hereby agree that any action arising out of this Grant Agreement shall be 
filed and maintained in the Superior Court in and for the County of Sacramento, 
California, or in the United States District Court in and for the Eastern District of 
California.  The Grantee hereby waives any existing sovereign immunity for the 
purposes of this Grant Agreement. 

20. Grantee’s responsibility for work: The Grantee shall be responsible for work and 
for persons or entities engaged in work, including, but not limited to contractors, 
subcontractors, sub-awardees, suppliers, and providers of services. The Grantee 
and/or its contractors, subcontractors, sub-awardees, suppliers, and providers of 
services, as applicable, shall be responsible for any and all disputes arising out of its 
contract for work on a project funded by this Grant Agreement, including but not 
limited to payment disputes with contractors, subcontractors, and providers of 
services. The State will not mediate disputes between the Grantee and any 
Recipient concerning responsibility for performance of work. 

21. Indemnification: The Grantee agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the 
State and CARB and its officers, employees, agents, representatives, and 
successors-in-interest against any and all liability, loss, and expense, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, from any and all claims for injury or damages arising out 
of the performance of this Grant Agreement by the Grantee.  

41



19 of 26 

22. Independent contractor: The Grantee, and its subgrantees, sub-awardees, agents
and employees, if any, in their performance of this Grant Agreement, shall act in an
independent capacity and not as officers, employees or agents of CARB.

23. Insurance:  Unless Grantee is self-insured, Grantee shall add the State of California
as an additional insured on all insurance policies it carries in relation to this Grant
during the Term of this Grant Agreement.

If Grantee is self-insured in whole or in part, Grantee shall provide CARB with written
acknowledgement of this fact at the time of the execution of this Grant Agreement.
CARB may require financial information to justify Grantee’s self-insured status. If, at
any time after the execution of this Grant Agreement, Grantee abandons its self-
insured status, Grantee shall immediately notify CARB of this fact and shall comply
with all of the terms and conditions of this Section pertaining to insurance
requirements.

24. Nondiscrimination: During the performance of this Grant Agreement, the Grantee
and its Recipients shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or allow harassment
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religious creed,
color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, reproductive
health decision making, medical condition, genetic information, marital status, sex,
gender, gender identity, gender expression, age (over 40), sexual orientation, or
veteran or military status, or allow denial of family-care leave, medical-care leave, or
pregnancy-disability leave. The Grantee and its Recipients shall ensure that the
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free
of such discrimination and harassment. The Grantee and Recipients shall comply
with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code section
12900 et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California
Code of Regulations, title 2, section 11000 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the
Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code section
12990 (a)-(f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4.1 of title 2 of the California Code of
Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part
hereof as if set forth in full. The Grantee and Recipients shall give written notice of
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a
collective bargaining or other agreement. The Grantee shall include the
nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all agreements with
Recipients to perform work under this Grant Agreement.

25. No third-party rights: The parties to this Grant Agreement do not create rights in,
or grant remedies to, any third party as a beneficiary of this Grant Agreement, or of
any duty, covenant, obligation or undertaking established herein.

26. Office of Foreign Asset Control:  The Office of Foreign Assets Control ("OFAC") of
the U.S. Department of the Treasury administers and enforces economic and trade
sanctions based on U.S. foreign policy and national security goals against targeted
foreign countries and regimes, terrorists, international narcotics traffickers, those
engaged in activities related to the proliferation of weapons of mass destruction, and
other threats to the national security, foreign policy or economy of the United States.
OFAC publishes lists of individuals and companies owned or controlled by, or acting

42



20 of 26 
 

 
 

for or on behalf of, targeted countries. It also lists individuals, groups, and entities, 
such as terrorists and narcotics traffickers designated under programs that are not 
country-specific.  These lists can be found at https://home.treasury.gov/policy-
issues/office-of-foreign-assets-control-sanctions-programs-and-information.  Unless 
otherwise authorized or exempt, transactions by U.S. persons or in the United States 
may be or are prohibited if they involve transferring, paying, exporting, withdrawing, 
or otherwise dealing in the property or interests in property of an entity or individual 
listed on the Office of Foreign Asset Control’s (OFAC) SDN or other Lists.  The 
property and interests in property of an entity that is 50 percent or more owned, 
whether individually or in the aggregate, directly or indirectly, by one or more 
persons whose property and interests in property are blocked pursuant to any part of 
31 C.F.R. chapter V are also blocked, regardless of whether the entity itself is listed.  
Refer also to the U.S. Department of the Treasury website: 
https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/financial-sanctions/sanctions-programs-and-
country-information/ukraine-russia-related-sanctions. Grantee shall notify CARB 
within 15 calendar days if it has or obtains knowledge that Grantee or any Recipient 
is in violation of any federal law pertaining to any entity or individual listed on any of 
the OFAC lists. 

In the event CARB determines that Grantee or a Recipient is in violation of any 
federal law pertaining to any entity or individual listed on any of the OFAC lists, that 
shall be grounds for CARB, in its sole discretion, to terminate this Grant Agreement. 
CARB shall provide Grantee advance written notice of such termination.  
 

27. Ownership: All information or data received or generated by the Grantee using 
Grant funds under this Grant Agreement shall become the property of CARB.  Any 
release of information or data received or generated under this Grant Agreement 
shall comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws, including those laws 
pertaining to security, personally identifiable information and confidentiality. 
 

28. Personally Identifiable Information:  Information or data, including, but not limited 
to, records that personally identify an individual or individuals are confidential in 
accordance with California Civil Code sections 1798, et seq. and other relevant 
State or Federal statutes and regulations.  The Grantee shall safeguard all such 
information or data which comes into their possession under this Grant Agreement in 
perpetuity, and shall not release or publish any such information, data, or records 
unless otherwise required by law, court order or subpoena. 

29. Prevailing wages and labor compliance:  The Grantee agrees to comply with all 
the applicable provisions of the California Labor Code pertaining to Public Works 
projects (Labor Code Sections 1720-1861) including those provisions requiring the 
payment of not less than the specified prevailing rate of wages as determined by the 
Director of the Department of Industrial Relations to workers employed in the 
performance of this grant.  The Grantee shall monitor all agreements subject to 
reimbursement from this Grant Agreement to ensure that the prevailing wage 
provisions of Labor Code Section 1720-1861 are being met. 

43



21 of 26 
 

 
 

30. Professionals: The Grantee agrees that only licensed professionals will be used to 
perform services under this Grant Agreement where such services are called for and 
licensed professionals are required for those services under State law. 

31. Severability: If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this Grant 
Agreement to be illegal, unenforceable, or invalid in whole or in part for any reason, 
the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions, or portions of those 
provisions, will not be affected.  

32. Survival:  Those sections pertaining to indemnity, recordkeeping, audit, assurances, 
third party beneficiary status, remedies for non-compliance with material terms and 
conditions, return or recapture of funds, liquidated damages, requirements under 
state and federal law, conflict of interest, return or recapture of funds, and 
confidentiality, shall survive the termination, cancellation or expiration of this Grant 
Agreement. 

33. Term: This Grant Award shall be effective upon full execution of this Grant 
Agreement and shall continue in full force and effect until all conditions of the Grant 
Agreement have been met.  This award is conditional based on CARB receipt and 
approval of a fully executed Grant Agreement Cover Sheet accepting these funds for 
Fiscal Year 2022-2023 by June 25, 2023.  

34. Termination: CARB may terminate this Grant Agreement by written notice 
at any time upon violation by the Grantee of any material provision of this 
Grant Agreement or applicable law, after such violation has been called to 
the attention of the Grantee and after failure of the Grantee to bring itself into 
compliance with the provisions of this Grant Agreement and applicable law 
within thirty (30) days of receipt of written notice from CARB, or such longer 
period as CARB may provide at its sole discretion. Within thirty (30) days of 
the effective date of termination of this Grant Agreement or such longer 
period as CARB may provide at its sole discretion, the Grantee shall turn 
over all remaining Grant funds and all records, personally identifiable 
information (“PII”), intellectual property, documents, information and data 
relating to performance, accounting, administration, contracting and 
management of the Grant funds, the projects funded by the Grant funds and 
as otherwise required elsewhere in this Grant Agreement or as requested by 
CARB.  For clarity, “remaining Grant funds” means the amount of Grant 
funds remaining after accounting for expenses incurred and agreements 
executed before receipt of the termination notice.  “Remaining grant funds” 
may also include any liquidated damages or return, repayment, or recapture 
of Grant funds for Grantee’s or a Recipient’s material breach, as discussed 
above in Sections 2 and 3. CARB, at its sole discretion, may elect to have 
any or all of the funding, documentation, intellectual property and other 
property transferred to another entity selected by CARB. 

35. Timeliness: Time is of the essence in this Grant Agreement.  The Grantee shall 
proceed with and complete all projects funded by this Grant Award and expenditure 
of funds to implement the work in an expeditious manner. 

44



22 of 26 

36. Total Agreement: This Grant Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the Parties and supersedes and replaces any and all prior
negotiations and agreements of any kind, whether written or oral, between the
Parties concerning this Grant Agreement.

37. Waiver of Rights: Any waiver of rights with respect to a default or other matter
arising under the Grant Agreement at any time by either party shall not be
considered a waiver of rights with respect to any other default or matter.  Any rights
and remedies of the State provided for in this Grant Agreement are in addition to any
other rights and remedies provided by law.

38. Disbursement Deadline: The Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Emission Inventory District
Grant Funds specified in this Grant Agreement must be encumbered or expended by
June 30, 2025.  Grant disbursement requests must be submitted by the Grantee to
CARB no later than April 1, 2027, to ensure adequate time for processing prior to the
end of the fiscal year.  The Grant Disbursement Request Form and Advance
Payment Request Form are incorporated as part of this grant agreement.

39. Disbursement Requests: The Grantee shall submit the Grant
Disbursement Requests to CARB Accounting Section at
accountspayable@arb.ca.gov with a CC to the CARB project liaison.
The Grantee must submit this electronically, based on CARB’s current
electronic submission guidance at the time of request. Requests for
payment must be made with the Grant Disbursement Request Form and
contain all documentation required with the form.

40. Liquidation and Return of Funds: Funds not liquidated by June 30, 2027, must be
returned by June 30, 2027.  Expenditure of Grant Funds granted may not be
reduced due to any loss incurred in an uninsured bank or investment account.

41. Order of precedence: In the event of any inconsistency between the article,
exhibits, attachments, specifications, or provisions which constitute this Grant
Agreement, the following order of precedence shall apply:

a. Grant Agreement Cover Sheet

b. Exhibit A – Grant Provisions

c. Exhibit B – General Terms and Conditions

d. Exhibit B, Attachment 1 – General Terms and Conditions

e. Exhibit B, Attachment 2 – Budget Summary

f. Exhibit B, Attachment 3 - Project Disbursement Schedule

g. Exhibit B, Attachment 4 – Project Schedule

42. Executive Order N-6-22 – Russia Sanctions: On March 4, 2022, Governor Gavin
Newsom issued Executive Order N-6-22 (the EO) regarding Economic Sanctions
against Russia and Russian entities and individuals. “Economic Sanctions” refers to
sanctions imposed by the U.S. government in response to Russia’s actions in
Ukraine, as well as any sanctions imposed under state law. The EO directs state

45



23 of 26 

agencies to terminate contracts and grants with, and to refrain from entering any 
new contracts and grants with, individuals or entities that are determined to be a 
target of Economic Sanctions. Accordingly, should the State determine Contractor or 
Grantee is a target of Economic Sanctions or is conducting prohibited transactions 
with sanctioned individuals or entities, that shall be grounds for termination of this 
agreement. The State shall provide Contractor or Grantee advance written notice of 
such termination, allowing Contractor or Grantee at least 30 calendar days to 
provide a written response. Termination shall be at the sole discretion of the State.  

46



24 of 26 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT B, ATTACHMENT 2 
 

Budget Summary 
 

Grantee:  Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District 
 
Grant Agreement No.:  G22-EIDG-20 
 
Project:   Quality Assurance Review of Point Source Emissions Data 

 
Total Costs & Funding 

 

Costs Grant 

Total Project Funds $ 8,583.00 

 

 
 
  

47



25 of 26 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT B, ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Project Disbursement Schedule 
 

Grantee:  Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District 
 
Grant Agreement No.:  G22-EIDG-20 
 
Project:   Quality Assurance Review of Point Source Emissions Data 
 

Milestone Description 
Scheduled 

Payment of Grant 
Funds 

Review and update facility information and 
emissions data for facilities that were in 
operation in 2022 

$ 7,725.00 
(90 percent) 

Submittal of Final Report to CARB 
(no later than May 1, 2024) 

$ 858.00 
(10 percent) 

Grant Agreement Total Funding Amount $ 8,583.00 

 
  

48



26 of 26 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT B, Attachment 4 
 

Project Schedule 
 

Grantee:  Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District 
 
Grant Agreement No.:  G22-EIDG-20 
 
Project:   Quality Assurance Review of Point Source Emissions Data 
 
 

Work Task Timeline 

District Governing Board Approval August 31, 2023 

Grant Agreement Execution June 30, 2023 

Kick Off Meeting TBD 

Update facility information and emissions data for facilities 
that were in operation in 2022 

August 2023  

Progress Report December 1, 2023 

Draft Final Report  March 1, 2024 

Final Report May 1, 2024 

 
 

 

49



To:Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors 
 
From: Julie Hunter, Interim Air Pollution Control Officer 
 
Date: September 25, 2023 
 
Agenda Item: V.B 
 
Agenda Description: Approval of Resolution #2023-09 for the District to accept funds from 
the California Resources Board for the AB197 Grant – Round 6 
 
Summary:  
The California Air Resources Board has requested that the District submit a resolution 
signed by its Board of Directors which authorizes the District to accept $8,583 for expenses 
necessary for the implementation of AB197.  The Resolution is attached for the Board’s 
Review and Chair’s Signature.   
 
Requested Action:     
Authorize the Chair to sign Resolution # 2023-09 
 
Attachments:  
1. Authorize the Chair to sign Resolution # 2023-09 

50



NORTHERN SIERRA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION  #2023-09  

 
In the Matter of Accepting Funding Provided by Assembly Bill 197.  
 
Whereas, Assembly Bill 197 (AB 197) is a companion legislative piece to Senate Bill 32 (SB32); and  
 
Whereas, SB32 is the scoping plan for the climate change legislative requirements of AB32; and  
 
Whereas, AB197 requires CARB to estimate GHG emissions for each evaluated measure in the 
development of the scoping plan and the associated criteria and toxics emissions for those measures; 
and  
 
Whereas, AB 197 provides funding for the implementation of emission reporting requirements for 
SB32; and   
 
Whereas, the Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District has been approved by the California Air 
Resources Board (CARB) for a grant under AB 197; and  
 
Whereas, the grant award is for expenses necessary for implementation of AB197; and  
 
Whereas, the grant award amount ($8,583); and  
 
Whereas, the District is accepting $ 8,583 of funds under AB197.  
 
Whereas, CARB requires a Board resolution authorizing the Air Pollution Control Officer (APCO) to 
sign the Grant Agreement and accept funding; and   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District 
Board as follows:  
 

1. The Board authorizes the APCO to sign the Agreement with CARB to execute all other 
necessary documents to implement and carry out the purposes of this resolution.   

 
2. The Board does hereby approve the acceptance of the $8,583 of funds under AB197 in 

accordance with the terms and conditions of the Grant Agreement.  
 

3. The Board hereby authorizes the APCO to accept any unallocated and awarded funds to the 
District under AB197.  
 

On a motion by Supervisor                                            , and seconded by Supervisor 
                             , the foregoing resolution was approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the 
Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District at a regular meeting held on August 28, 2023, by the 
following roll call vote: 

Ayes: 
Noes: 
Absent: 
Abstaining: 

 
Approve:                                                                                     
  Chair of Board 
 
Attest:                                                
           Dawn Lunsford, Clerk of the Board              
 

51



To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors 
 
From: Julie Hunter, Interim Air Pollution Control Officer 
 
Date: September 25, 2023 
 
Agenda Item: V.C 
 
Agenda Description: Ratify CPS HR Consulting Services Agreement for the NSAQMD 
Executive Director – Outreach contract. 
 
Summary:  
The Board contracted with CPS HR Consulting Services for the recruitment of the APCO 
under the Outreach Level of recruitment for the amount of $10,000.  The contract was fully 
executed on July 24, 2023.  The Contract is presented to the Board for final authorization 
today by action of ratifying. 
 
Requested Action:  
Ratify CPS HR Consulting Services Agreement – Outreach Contract 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE REQUESTED 
 
Attachments:   
1. CPS HR Consulting Services Agreement – Outreach Contract 

 

52



53



54



Sandy MacDonald-Hopp

Chief Financial Officer

55



56



To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors 

From:  Julie Hunter, Interim Air Pollution Control Officer 

Date:  September 25, 2023 

Agenda Item: V.D 

Agenda Description: Approval of Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Unaudited Actuals and Budget 
Revision 

Summary:  
Total Operating Income for FY 22-23 was $1,115,749.11 and total Operating Expenses 
were $1,219,833.79.  Overall, the Districts Operating Revenue was $104,084.68 less than 
the Operating Expenses 

Attached are the final spreadsheets (unaudited) for the Board’s review.  

Requested Action:  
Review and Approve Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Unaudited Actuals and Budget Revision 

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUESTED 

Attachments:   
Unaudited Actuals for the Year Ending June 30, 2023 

57



58



59



60



61



62



63



SERVING THE COUNTIES OF NEVADA, PLUMAS AND SIERRA 

To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors 

From:  Julie Hunter, Interim Air Pollution Control Officer 

Date:  September 25, 2023 

Agenda Item: V.E

Agenda Description: Approval of hiring approved Air Pollution Specialist I, at a Step C. 

Summary: 
According to the District’s Personnel Policy 2045.30, the APCO must notify the Board of an 
appointment of an employee hired at advanced steps B and C and provide the reasoning 
behind such findings.   

The Board approved an APCS I at the May 22, 2023 Board Meeting. On September 12, 
2023, District staff interviewed two additional applicants, and would like to offer the position 
to .an applicant.  The applicant has a master’s degree in Environmental Civil Engineering 
and work experience includes Planning and Permitting, including, advocating greenhouse 
gas reduction, alternative transportation, and affordable housing.  With the applicants 
previous experience and education, I would like to recommend hiring an APCS I, Step C. 

Requested Action: 
Approval of hiring an APCS I at a Step C 

Attachment:  

District Policy 2045.30 

Salary Step at Hiring: It is the Board’s intent that all newly hired employees should be 
appointed at Step A. However, the APCO may hire at steps B and C if the APCO finds that 
an applicant possesses extraordinary qualifications in terms of training and experience. In 
such instances, the APCO must notify the Board of the appointment of an employee at 
advanced steps B and C and provide the reasoning behind such findings. Hiring at steps D 
and E requires advance Board approval. 

64



To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors 

From: Julie Hunter, Interim Air Pollution Control Officer 

Date: September 25, 2023 

Agenda Item: VI. – Directors Report (Informational Only 

Agenda Description:  
Update on Information Technology (IT) changes, online payments, and occupying the 
Conference Room in the Grass Valley office. 

Information: 
The District switched IT firms, this changed occurred on August 1, 2023 with Clientworks.  
The change will save the District approximately $1,000 per month.  Staff from Clientworks 
have visited all field sites to identify equipment update needs, and have visited both the 
Portola and the Grass Valley offices to create a smoother connection between the offices. 

The District also switched online payment companies..  This switch will save the Districts 
customers 1% on fees when invoices are paid online.   

Additionally, I am in conversations with the Litton’s, owners of the Grass Valley office, 
regarding vacating the conference room/lab space and relocating into the main office.  The 
rent in this portion of the Litton building is $780 plus utilities per month.  The Litton’s are 
discussing options and will get back to me.   

Requested Action:  None, informational only 

Attachments:  

65



To:Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors 
 
From:  Melissa Klundby, APCS II 
 
Date:  September 25, 2023 
 
Agenda Item Number: VII.A 
 
Description: Monitoring Update 
 
Information:  
 
Staff is currently working with to purchase a new monitoring machine for the Portola site to 
replace two machines that are currently non-operational due to age. After the arrival of the 
new equipment, staff will work on modifications to the Portola site. The city has requested 
roof repairs at that location due to leaks. 
 
Funding for this equipment and site repairs will be provided by funds specifically earmarked 
for site upgrades and are not anticipated to exceed budgeted amounts. 
 
District staff will also be working to perform mandatory annual testing at its PM2.5 
monitoring sites over the next several months. 
 
Background:  
The District has five monitoring sites within the network and has been monitoring air quality 
since 1986 in Plumas, Sierra and Nevada counties.  The current network monitors for 
PM2.5, Ozone, Speciation, and Carbon.   
 
Requested Action:   
None, informational only 
 
Attachments:   
None 
 

66



To:  Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors 
 
From:  District Staff 
 
Date:  September 25, 2023 
 
Agenda Item Number: VII.B 
 
Description: Planning Program Update 
 
Information:   
State Implementation Plans (SIP): 
The Serious Portola SIP is in progress.  Staff meet with CARB and EPA on a bi-weekly 
basis to work to contingency measures and Best Available Control Measure (BACM) to 
meet EPAs requirements of a Serious SIP. 
 
Emissions Inventory: 
Emissions Inventory (EI) is complete and was submitted this month. 
 
Project Plan Reviews: 
District staff review projects and provide comments on plans that come through the 
Planning Departments in all three counties.  Staff review projects for potential air quality 
impacts and provide comments on the permitting that will be required for their Authority 
to Construct permit.   
 

Summary of Planning Document Review Comment Requests received and/or 
responded to for the 3rd quarter from June 19 to September 14, 2023 

Month First Distributions Replies Submittinq Aqencies 
July (June 19--->) 6 4 Nev. County, NC, GV 
Auqust 7 4 Nevada County, PG&E 
September (1/2) 5 3 Nevada County, GV, 

PG&E 
Totals 18 11  

 
Staff have re-established working relationships with Nevada County, Truckee, Grass 
Valley, and the Nevada City Planning Departments. We expect an increase in submitted 
Planning Documents to District staff for review by approximately 3-5% per month over 
the next year in Nevada County.  
 
Requested Action:   
None, informational only 
 
Attachments:   
None 
 

67



To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors 

From: Tasha Coleman, APCS I  

Date: September 25, 2023 

Agenda Item Number: VII.C 

Description: Permitting Update 

Information: 
The District is responsible for permitting all sources in Plumas, Sierra and Nevada counties 
that emit criteria pollutants.  There are a total of 28 Stationary Sources and two Title V 
facilities in the Districts jurisdiction.    

Stationary Sources: Stationary Sources are permitted throughout the year based on the 
expiration of the facilities permit and the throughput of the emissions from the previous year.   

Quarter First Second Third Fourth 
Months Jan-Mar Apr-June July-Sept Oct-Dec 

Permit to Operate 
(PTO) Issued 

6 8 9 N/A 

Stationary Engines: Diesel generators that are over 50hp. 
•Yearly (renewal in May): 217 renewal permits sent out.
•Still missing 3 payments.

Vapor Recovery 
•Yearly (renewal in Oct): TDB

Burn Permits 
•987 acres treated by Ranger Districts in the jurisdiction.

Quarter First Second Third Fourth 
Months Jan-Mar Apr-June July-Sept Oct-Dec 

Permits Issued 25 34 N/A 

There are four National Forests and nine Ranger Districts within the Districts jurisdiction. 
Burn permits have been suspended for the season, 2023.  

Emission Inventory: Emission Inventory has been completed and sent to the districts CARB 
liaison for review. 

Requested Action: 
None, informational only 

Attachments: 
None 

68



To: Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors 
 
From: Duane Strawser 
 
Date: September 25, 2023 
 
Agenda Item Number: VII.D 
 
Description: Enforcement Program Update  
 
Information: Facilities that are under permit with the district in all three counties need to have a 
yearly inspection to make sure all facilities are following their individual requirements.  
 
Stationary Sources 
Stationary Source inspections have started for the year 2023.  
 

Stationary Sources Facilities 
Nevada County Plumas & Sierra County 

20 Facilities  
● August: 2 annual inspections 

completed.  
● September: 2 annual inspections 

completed. 

10 Facilities  
• 1 annual inspection completed 

 
Vapor Recovery:  
Vapor Recovery inspections have been almost completed for the year 2023. The vapor recovery 
database has been updated in the Districts system. The District is planning to send letters to gas 
station facilities soon that have not completed their yearly Vapor Recovery Tests if the District 
has not yet received their results.  
 

Vapor Recovery 
Nevada County Plumas & Sierra County 

41 Facilities  
● Final 2 inspections completed in 

July/August w/ full compliance*. 
(*2x facilities pending minor 

repairs required for final sign-off).  

26 Facilities  
● All facilities inspected, excluding five. 

These facilities are located in Sierra 
County and LaPorte. Inspector will 
prioritize time to inspect these soon.  

 
 
 

mailto:duanes@myairdistrict.com


To:Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors 

From:  Mikki Brown, Targeted Airshed Grant Specialist I 

Date:  September 25, 2023 

Agenda Item Number: VII.E 

Description: Targeted Airshed Grants Update 

Information:   
•We attend City Council meetings on the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays of the month and

provide TAG updates. 

•Working with EPA and CARB to draft a District Rule that encourages emissions
reductions while taking into consideration the topography of the zones, the 
community, and best available control measures. The proposed rule will likely impact 
zone 1 of the non-attainment area the most. 

•We switched social media contractors to someone local to manage the wood stove
change out social media outlets. This change happened in June. 

•TAG ran a pilot seasoned firewood program this spring and summer. We found the
program successful (all delivered wood was seasoned by September) with J&C 
Enterprises and plan to run a voucher program next spring with their partnership. 

Approximate funds remaining in each TAG as of 9/1/23: 
2015 $11,496.34 
2018 $2,348,828.79 
2020 $2,578,569.83 
Projects we are currently working on include hiring a TAG enforcement coordinator to work 
temporary part time to observe residential wood smoke. This persons start date is 
scheduled for September 26th. We are also working with Lawrence Berkeley Lab (LBL) to 
have some in-situ testing done in local homes with EPA certified devices (totally voluntary) 
to see how emissions ratings in real life compare to warehouse factory testing. We are also 
preparing for a sight visit on September 21st and 22nd when the EPA and CARB plan to 
spend the a few days in Portola to meet with retailers and city staff. 

Requested Action:  
None, informational only 

Attachments:  
None 

69



To:Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Board of Directors 

From:  Melissa Klundby, APCS II 

Date:  September 25, 2023 

Agenda Item Number: VII.F 

Description: Grants 

Information:  

FARMER : Staff has submitted 13 applications to the FARMER grant program liaison for 
review and will bring any approved projects to the Board for contract award and review 
when available. Staff will also be bringing an agreement to the Board for the possible 
administration of a FAMER grant in Mariposa Count. The local air district does not 
administer the FARMER program in that County and each grant brings significant 
administration funds to the District. The process is not competitive across the rural counties 
as each application is weighed on its own merits for cost effectiveness.  

AB 2766: Staff is working to amend the process and timeline for the AB 2766 Grant 
Program and will bring all future projects for Board review annually at the October Board 
meeting. Staff has received one application for Sierra County and five applications for 
Nevada County funds. Plumas County funds were not available for reward during this grant 
cycle. Staff will bring the applications for Board review at the October Board meeting. 
Applicants are requested to be present at the Board meeting and are anticipated to attend 
the meeting in the Grass Valley offices. 

Carl Moyer: Staff has had difficulty finding applicants to participate in the Carl Moyer 
program, based upon project funding amounts implemented by the Board. The Board has 
adopted policies limiting the amount of funding for a CARL Moyer projects to a maximum of 
70% of total project costs even though State guidelines allow for up to 80% of total project 
costs to be funded. The FARMER program allows for 80% of total project costs to be funded 
and applicants are choosing to participate in that program instead of the Carl Moyer 
program. Staff will be requesting a review of the Board policies at a later date. 

IRA: District submitted a request for funds for monitoring under the Inflation Reduction Act 
of 2002 (IRA). This request was a Needs Assessment.  Staff requested funding to assist 
with Monitoring equipment and upgrades, Contract support for Planning documents, and 
staffing.  The EPA will review the Needs Assessment and will determines allocation 
methodology and grants guidance by late winter/early spring 2024.   

Requested Action:  
None, informational only 

70


	Agenda, Board Meeting September 25, 2023
	Agenda Item: I
	Standing Orders:

	Agenda Item: II
	Approval and/or Modificatons to Agenda

	Agenda Item: III
	Consent Calendar
	Agenda Item: III.A
	June 26, 2023 Minutes

	Agenda Item: III.B
	Payment Details by Vendor Board Report-June 2023 
	Payment Details by Vendor Board Report-July 2023

	Agenda Item: III.C
	Re-Appoint Variance Hearing Board Member Greg Margason



	Agenda Item: IV
	Closed Session

	Agenda Item: V
	Administrative Report (Action/Discussion Items)
	Agenda Item: V.A
	Ratify Contract # G22-EIDG-20 between CARB and Air District for
Receiving $8,583 in AB 197 Emission Inventor Grant funds.
	Contract #G22-EIDG-20


	Agenda Item: V.B
	Approval of Resolution #2023-09 for the District to accept funds from
the California Resources Board for the AB197 Grant – Round 6
	Resolution #2023-09


	Agenda Item: V.C
	Ratify CPS HR Consulting Services Agreement for the NSAQMD
Executive Director – Outreach contract.
	CPS HR Consulting Services Agreement – Outreach Contract


	Agenda Item: V.D
	Approval of Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Unaudited Actuals and Budget
Revision
	Unaudited Actuals for the Year Ending June 30, 2023


	Agenda Item: V.E
	Approval of hiring approved Air Pollution Specialist I, at a Step C.



	Agenda Item: VI
	Directors Report (Informational Only

	Agenda Item: VII
	Staff Reports/Program Updates (Informational Only)
	Agenda VII.A
	Monitoring Update

	Agenda VII.B
	Planning Program Update

	Agenda VII.C
	Permitting Update

	Agend VII.D
	Compliance/Enforcement Program Update

	Agenda VII.E
	Targeted Airshed Grants Update

	Agenda VII.F
	Grants Update



	Agenda VIII
	Concerns of Board

	Agenda X
	Schedule next Meeting, October 23, 2023 @ 1:00 pm

	Agenda XI
	Adjournment




